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CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Notice was duly given by regular mail and facsimile to the Essex County Executive, the Essex County Clerk, the Clerk of the Board of Chosen Freeholders, Freeholder President Watson, the News Editor of The Herald News, the News Editor of The Star-Ledger and notice was posted on the bulletin board in the Office of the Essex County Improvement Authority stating the time, date, location of this Regular Board Meeting.
Roll call, please.
THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Cohen?

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  Here.

THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Spiesbach?

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Here.

THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Toro?

COMMISSIONER TORO:  Here.

THE SECRETARY:  Chairman Rother?
CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Here.
Okay, we have to swear in --
COMMISSIONER COHEN:  You’re going to swear at me?

MS. GILL:  You want to affirm or?

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  I’m happy to have a Bible.

MS. GILL:  Okay.

(Whereupon, Eleonore Kessler Cohen was duly sworn in as Commissioner of the Essex County Improvement Authority.)

(Whereupon, there was a pause in the proceedings.)

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  All right, any comment from the public?

Seeing none.
(Whereupon, the Board discussed and took action on the following items:

ACCEPTANCE OF MINUTES

   1.
RESOLUTION NO. 11-09 - REGULAR BOARD MEETING 3-29-11.)
CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Can we have the acceptance of the Regular Board Meeting of March 29th, 2011?

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Move to accept.

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  Second.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Roll call.

THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Cohen?

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  Yes.

THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Spiesbach?

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Aye.

THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Toro?

COMMISSIONER TORO:  Yes.

THE SECRETARY:  Chairman Rother?

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Yes.

Are we going to have any matters for Executive Session, Jim?

MR. PAGANELLI:  I don’t think so.

Commissioner Spiesbach I know wrote to us today asking about an update on Celanese since it’s been about six months --

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  Yeah.

MR. PAGANELLI:  -- since final papers were submitted.

Lucy reached out to Edelstein’s office.  They said that Judge Klein indicates the next thing on her list get done, so.
COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Well, that was in response to --

MR. PAGANELLI:  Yeah.

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  -- their update.

MR. PAGANELLI:  Right.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  That was pretty cursory.  That –- and were you in attendance during any of that trial or --

MR. PAGANELLI:  Some of it, yeah.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Yeah.

MR. PAGANELLI:  Yeah.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Anything of note?  No?  Not really?

MR. PAGANELLI:  Kind of dry.

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  It was interesting, when we saw the -- that Judge Klein had affirmed I said yay.  And then I read what it was.

MR. PAGANELLI:  Yeah.  

So, hopefully soon before too much summer is on the way.

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Well, then we can just go on to the appeal then.

MR. PAGANELLI:  Yeah.  That will be next.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Okay.  Moving onto the Resolutions.


(Whereupon, the Board discussed and took action on the following items:

ADMINISTRATIVE

   1.
RESOLUTION NO. 11-065 - RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ACCEPTANCE OF THE AUTHORITY’S REPORT OF AUDIT FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010;

   2.
RESOLUTION NO. 11-066 - RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PAYMENT TO AUDIO-DIGITAL TRANSCRIPTION SERVICES, LLC FOR TRANSCRIPTION OF BOARD MEETING ON 3-29-11;

   3.
RESOLUTION NO. 11-067 - RESOLUTION RATIFYING PAYMENT OF RECURRING BILLS (BILL LIST);

   4.
RESOLUTION NO. 11-068 - RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PAYMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $560.00 TO MICROSHOP SYSTEMS FOR COMPUTER RELATED SERVICES; and
   5.
RESOLUTION NO. 11-069 - RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PAYMENT TO PHIL LANZET IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,700.00 FOR ACCOUNTING SERVICES.)
CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Administrative Resolutions.

Items 1 through 5.

MR. PAGANELLI:  Mr. Chairman, on number 1, if ‑‑

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Yup.

MR. PAGANELLI:  -- I may, just before we consider the other items.

Gerry Stankiewicz is here --
CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Right.

MR. PAGANELLI:  -- this evening from Samuel Klein’s office.

We had our exit conference last week.

MS. SAPINSKI:  Wednesday?

MR. STANKIEWICZ:  We had several.

MR. PAGANELLI:  Yeah.

MR. STANKIEWICZ:  But the formal one was Thursday at about three o’clock.

MR. PAGANELLI:  We then sent it out to the Board, as the Board does it’s -- did its review.  I think we were responsive to their questions.

The one Mr. -- Commissioner Klinghoffer who couldn’t be here tonight though sent a couple of questions in.  I think we’ve answered those principally regarding 50 percent of revenue on the Airport being attributed to two clients.

I explained to the Commissioner that that was our two fixed base operators Avantair and Air Bound; not only because of the lease space they hold but also because they have the fuel rights.

He asked a question on Sportsplex and why we haven’t conducted audits on the Sportsplex.  And I -- it’s public knowledge, the last two or three years Sportsplex the operator has gone bankrupt at the end of each year.

So, the -- I felt that there was no need to audit the books since they were going to go to bankruptcy.

And the last one was a question on a grants report -- actually page 74 in the document, and that page, during my review and during Mr. Stankiewicz’s review, led to some corrections.  It was mathematical errors; it wasn’t as depicted when originally sent out to everybody.

So, with that said, Gerry, I’ll open up the floor for you if you have any comments to make.  And then maybe if any of the Commissioners have questions of you.

MR. STANKIEWICZ:  Okay.  I appreciate the opportunity.

MS. DILLON:  Can I just ask you to step forward please for me?

MR. STANKIEWICZ:  Sure.

MS. DILLON:  Thank you.

MR. PAGANELLI:  Give us your name, --

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Before you start, this page 74 that we have now is a corrected page 74?

MR. PAGANELLI:  Yeah, the one that should be --

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Okay.

MR. PAGANELLI:  -- out right on top.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Okay.

MR. STANKIEWICZ:  Yes.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  All right.

MR. STANKIEWICZ:  Basically, I’m here to just give you a quick synopsis on the audit.

MR. PAGANELLI:  Just give us who you are and your affiliation please?

MR. STANKIEWICZ:  Gerry Stankiewicz, partner, Samuel Klein and Company.  

I’m responsible for the field work and the presentation of this particular job and it has a clean opinion which means it’s unqualified.  Which means that the financial statements, as presented, were presented fairly.  And there are no audit recommendations.  
There’s some comments.  Okay.

There are no deficiencies in your administration of federal and state grants.  In fact, I actually did it myself for the first time and it’s quite impressive -- the documentation on the grants.  So, we’re happy with that.

But in the end we ended up finalizing the report last Thursday and it’s going to be issued and in the Commissioners’ hands.  And we’re here actually to make sure, number one, you have had a chance to review it; number two, it will be filed by the deadline, which is Saturday, so it will be there on Friday.

But we do have the various funds set up.  The various new deals are also set up in the unrestricted fund.  Your surpluses are quite nice in the Airport and the Development Assistance.

And really that’s all I have to report.

We appreciate everyone’s help here.  We kind of overworked Lucy a little bit.  

And we appreciate one individual from Watson, Rice; her name was Bima.  A little lady that works in here all the time; we appreciate her help and hard work, so.

That’s really all I have to say.

If you have any questions, I’m happy to answer them.

MR. PAGANELLI:  Go ahead.  Sure.

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  First of all, it’s the first time I’ve ever seen an audit where there are no recommendations.

So, congratulations, Jim.

But I do have a question on page 79.

MR. STANKIEWICZ:  Seventy--

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  --nine.

Where --

MR. STANKIEWICZ:  Okay.

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  The last sentence before it goes to unrestricted funds.

Where it says that the members of the Essex County Improvement -- have the responsibility of determining whether any contract or agreement might result in a violation of statute and when a question arises the Authority’s counsel opinion should be sought before commitment is made.

I hope that that will be going forward?

MR. PAGANELLI:  Yes.

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  I thought that was a good thing.

MR. STANKIEWICZ:  Well, you know what?  To be truthful, every audit I’m involved in that’s a standard comment.  That’s an early warning to say, look, if you’re not sure, ask your lawyer.

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  Okay.

MR. STANKIEWICZ:  We don’t want to be in here saying, hey, you know, guys, you violated the bid threshold, you know, and how can we have not done that.  

Well, you know what?  Double check with your lawyer and if she says go to bid, then go to bid.

If there’s an out, obviously, we would be happy to help.  I --

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Do you audit that?

MR. STANKIEWICZ:  Oh, yeah.  We audit -- we audit your compliance with the bids.

Yeah. 

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Yeah.

MR. STANKIEWICZ:  We do --

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Sampling or every one?

MR. STANKIEWICZ:  Oh, no, every -- every --

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  Well, that’s good.

MR. STANKIEWICZ:  No.  Not on that one.  At least my jobs; I don’t sample on any -- my own particular preference is any vendor that receives more than 17,500 in my mind is subject to the bid law.

Even though the bid threshold is higher, we’re in a seventeen-five world, as I think you’re all aware, --

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  But you audit all those files?

MR. STANKIEWICZ:  Oh, yeah.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Okay.

MR. STANKIEWICZ:  We check everything that’s -- and you only have a few that are subject to bid.  
Others are professionals, --

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Um-hum.

MR. STANKIEWICZ:  -- which are all subject to RFPs, RFQs.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Um-hum.

MR. STANKIEWICZ:  Interlocal -- I don’t think you have any interlocal agreements.

I know you have other agreements that precede the year; like some of the financings.  That has all been bid and/or quoted previously, so.

No, we check it all.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Okay.

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  I have one more.  On page 81.  The reference to CMMI and the receivables.

Has this been resolved by the order that was just issued?

MR. PAGANELLI:  Well, they’re flagged as they should be by the auditor that debt service payments were not made by the occupant or those of possession, which was CMMI.

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  Um-hum. 

MR. PAGANELLI:  One of the things we had to update in the comment section was that the Improvement Authority and the County really together have initiated litigation against CMMI, have a judgment in foreclosure, have a Law Division action pending in terms of total damages, have some other issues that are pending.

So, I think it’s appropriate to be here and that we are litigating to try to conduct the money and how it gets disposed of we’ll have to see.  That will be the next year’s report.

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  Okay.

MR. PAGANELLI:  Okay?
Any other questions?

MR. STANKIEWICZ:  I’m pretty well set.  If you have any questions or -- beyond here, you just channel through Jim and we’ll get you an answer.  If he can’t handle it, we’ll get on the phone and --

MR. PAGANELLI:  I probably can’t handle it.

But, if I could, just for the Commissioners on a go-forward basis, Klein has been here a number of years and we all know that.
One of the things that we have enjoyed is that they send in different people to do the audit.  So we always get a different perspective from them.

And they’re always here inquiring about different aspects of our financial stability, which I think is -- it’s a good test for all of us.

So, I want to say Gerry thank you.  And I know Joe Faccone couldn’t be here and I was not putting it off.

It’s not an easy thing to deal with me.  I take a lot of pride in this place.  I want it done when I want it done.  I want it done on time, as the Board does.  And with year-end and things getting done by April, it’s not an easy task for them.  

So, I appreciate the time that we get.  I appreciate the effort we get.  They send a lot of people here.  We do a lot of running around.

So, I want to say thank you to Samuel Klein.

I do want the Board to know that without Lucy the document’s not done.

You know I think everybody knows she’s basically my brain out here but if she doesn’t do the work that she does, if she doesn’t have the organizational skills that she has, this thing does not get finished.

So, I want to make sure that we recognize her effort in running around too and she knows that --

MR. STANKIEWICZ:  Oh, yeah.

MR. PAGANELLI:  -- we’re not going to accept it being late.

So, I think it’s been a good effort.

Okay?

That’s all I got.

MR. STANKIEWICZ:  Okay.

MR. PAGANELLI:  Thank you.

MR. STANKIEWICZ:  Okay, now you’re going to do the acceptance Reso and all that?

MR. PAGANELLI:  Yup.

MR. STANKIEWICZ:  Okay.  

So, I’m excused?

MR. PAGANELLI:  You’re excused.

MR. STANKIEWICZ:  Thank you.

Have a good night.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Thanks.  
Good night.

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Do you want to do 1 by itself then, Steve?

And then the others?

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Do we have -- is there any reason to do 1 by itself?

No?

MR. PAGANELLI:  No, sir.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  One through 5.  Can we have a motion?

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  I would move --

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Unless there’s other questions?

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  I would move items 1 through 5.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Okay.

Second?

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  Second.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Roll call, please.

THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Cohen?

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  Yes.

THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Spiesbach?

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Aye.

THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Toro?

COMMISSIONER TORO:  Yes.

THE SECRETARY:  Chairman Rother?

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Yes.

(Whereupon, the Board discussed and took action on the following items:

HILLTOP
   6.
RESOLUTION NO. 11-070 - RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PAYMENT OF $141.50 TO DE COTIIS, FITZPATRICK & COLE, LLP FOR LEGAL SERVICES REGARDING HILLTOP REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 3-31-11; and
   7.
RESOLUTION NO. 11-071 - RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PAYMENT OF $12,487.25 TO MERRILL COMMUNICATIONS LLC FOR COPYING SERVICES IN CONNECTION WITH THE HILLTOP LITIGATION (KHOV. VS. COUNTY OF ESSEX.)


CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Okay, Hilltop, Resolutions 6 and 7.


Any questions?


None?


Can we have a motion?

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Move items 6 and 7.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Is there a second?

COMMISSIONER TORO:  Second.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Roll call, please.

THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Cohen?

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  Yes.
THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Spiesbach?

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Aye.

THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Toro?

COMMISSIONER TORO:  Yes.

THE SECRETARY:  Chairman Rother?

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Yes.

(Whereupon, the Board discussed and took action on the following items:

AIRPORT
   8.
RESOLUTION NO. 11-072 - RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PAYMENT TO C&S ENGINEERS, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $9,778.45 FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES RENDERED IN CONNECTION WITH THE AIRPORT LAYOUT PLAN (GRANT FUNDED, FAA/NJDOT, PROJECT);
   9.
RESOLUTION NO. 11-073 - RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PAYMENT TO C&S ENGINEERS, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $818.51 FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES RENDERED IN CONNECTION WITH THE CONSTRUCTION OBSERVATION AND ADMINISTRATION FOR RSA & OBSTRUCTION REMOVAL PHASE V PROJECT (FAA GRANT FUNDED PROJECT);

  10.
RESOLUTION NO. 11-074 - RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PAYMENT TO C&S ENGINEERS, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $13,500.00 FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES RENDERED IN CONNECTION WITH THE DESIGN FOR RSA & OBSTRUCTION REMOVAL - PHASE VI PROJECTS (FAA GRANT FUNDED PROJECT);

  11.
RESOLUTION NO. 11-075 - RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PAYMENT TO GC STEWART IN THE AMOUNT OF $2,800.00 FOR BOUNDARY SURVEY OF AIRPORT PROPERTY IN CONNECTION WITH THE AIRPORT LAYOUT PLAN;

  12.
RESOLUTION NO. 11-076 - RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PAYMENT TO CORNELL EQUIPMENT CO., IN THE AMOUNT OF $620.00 FOR NEW PARTS FOR THE AIRPORT VEHICLES;

  13.
RESOLUTION NO. 11-077 - RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PAYMENT TO DAVE STERN INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,222.64 FOR NEW PARTS FOR THE AIRPORT VEHICLES;

  14.
RESOLUTION NO. 11-078 - RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PAYMENT TO NEW JERSEY DOOR WORKS IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,667.75 FOR DOORS REPAIRS AT HANGAR 3; and

  15.
RESOLUTION NO. 11-079 - RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO PROVIDE WRITTEN CONSENT TO AIR BOUND AVIATION TO SUBLEASE SOME OFFICE AND HANGAR SPACE TO CASTLE AVIATION.)

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Airport, Resolutions 8 through 15.

Gerry, you got anything there?

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  No, I’m good.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  You’re good?

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Um-hum.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Okay.

Anyone else?

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  No.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  If not, can we have a motion?

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  I’ll move it.

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  I would move it.

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  All right.

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Cool.

I’ll second.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Roll call, please.

THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Cohen?

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  Yes.

THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Spiesbach?

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Aye.

THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Toro?

COMMISSIONER TORO:  Yes.

THE SECRETARY:  Chairman Rother?

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Yes.
(Whereupon, the Board discussed and took action on the following item:

BOATHOUSE/RESTAURANT PROJECT

  16.
RESOLUTION NO. 11-080 - RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE A LEASE AGREEMENT WITH THE COUNTY OF ESSEX AND MCLOONE’S WEST ORANGE, LLC FOR A RESTAURANT.)


CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Boathouse/Restaurant Project, item 16.


COMMISSIONER COHEN:  I have a question on that.


CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Yeah?


COMMISSIONER COHEN:  How come it comes to us?


Why does it work that we do this kind of --


I’m not opposed to it.  I’m just curious to know how the process works that it comes to us.


MR. PAGANELLI:  It is -- when -- in earlier meetings when we’ve discussed this I likened it to just a -- it’s a pass-through lease.


It’s just like many of the other projects that we have on behalf of the County where we’re in the deal to make the deal go smoother for the County.  Whether it’s a condo and financing, whether it’s the Jail; things like that.


So, in this circumstance, the Improvement Authority Law and the Improvement Authority Statutes gave greater flexibility to try to get this project done than the County could do on its own.


So, with that analysis when we sat with the County we said you know what, we’ll be the lessee/sub-lessor out --


If I said those two things right.


-- and it has helped the County generate this project in a much more comfortable fashion for the County.


COMMISSIONER COHEN:  Okay.


CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Okay?


Want to move that?


COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  I will move item 16.


CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Good.


COMMISSIONER COHEN:  I’ll second.


CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Roll call.


THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Cohen?


COMMISSIONER COHEN:  Yes.


THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Spiesbach?


COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Aye.


THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Toro?


COMMISSIONER TORO:  Yes.


THE SECRETARY:  Chairman Rother?


CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Yes.

(Whereupon, the Board discussed and took action on the following item:

CMMI

  17.
RESOLUTION NO. 11-081 - RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PAYMENT OF $5,436.85 TO DE COTIIS, FITZPATRICK & COLE, LLP FOR LEGAL SERVICES IN CONNECTION WITH CMMI FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 3‑31‑11.)

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Okay, item 17.

CMMI.

MR. PAGANELLI:  Mr. Chairman, if I could just make a comment on CMMI?


CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Yup.


MR. PAGANELLI:  A number of months ago I thought we were very close to actually settling this case.


CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Yeah.


MR. PAGANELLI:  I think I may have even reported that --


CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Yup.


MR. PAGANELLI:  -- we were close to a settlement.
CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Yup.


MR. PAGANELLI:  Despite that advice from me, the defendants in this matter refuse to execute the settlement agreement.  Didn’t argue over terms or not; just said, no, we never really agreed to settling it.


And after looking at it I didn’t think that there was enough in the file that we were going to win a motion, in all frankness, to try to enforce on the settlement.


So that’s probably why you’re starting to see a little bit of a kick-up in bills here.  Because (a) we didn’t have the settlement we wanted and I am trying to keep the pressure on the present possessor as much as I can.


So, when I indicated earlier when we talked about the audit in response to Commissioner Cohen’s comments, we do have a judgment of foreclosure, but the foreclosure unit is a little behind.  
So, we’re trying to take other legal steps to try to get action out of our adversaries here.  And that’s why we filed the motion in the Law Division for dollars.


We’ve also had a tour set up for yesterday.  We’ve gotten phone calls from the Township of Belleville who has concerns that there are no lights on in the facility anymore but there are still items left in the facility.  They’re concerned that if there’s a fire they want to know what they’re walking into.


We have an appraiser set up to go through the building.  


We went yesterday.  The court has now ordered CMMI to give us access.  We went yesterday to get access; they wouldn’t -- they didn’t show.


So we have now filed an order to show cause as to why they haven’t showed, why they’re violating the order.


So, you may see a couple more bills and that’s why you’re seeing the bills.  Because earlier when I thought it was resolved, it just hasn’t been resolved and we’re just trying to keep some pressure on them to get --


CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Um-hum.


MR. PAGANELLI:  -- thing done.


CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Okay.


COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Then I would move item 17.


Thank you, Jim, for that explanation.


MR. PAGANELLI:  Yes.


CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Okay.


COMMISSIONER COHEN:  Second.


CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Roll call.

THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Cohen?

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  Yes.

THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Spiesbach?

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Aye.

THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Toro?

COMMISSIONER TORO:  Yes.

THE SECRETARY:  Chairman Rother?

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Yes.

(Whereupon, the Board discussed the following items:

NEWARK RIVERFRONT PROJECT

  18.
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PAYMENT OF $53,041.35 TO PS&S FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES RENDERED IN CONNECTION WITH NEWARK RIVERFRONT REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 1‑31‑11;

  19.
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PAYMENT OF $35,154.56 TO PS&S FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES RENDERED IN CONNECTION WITH NEWARK RIVERFRONT REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 2‑28‑11.)
(Whereupon the Board discussed and took action on the following item:

  20.
RESOLUTION NO. 11-082 - RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PAYMENT OF $312.50 TO PHILLIPS, PREISS, GRYGIEL, LLC FOR SERVICES RENDERED IN CONNECTION WITH NEWARK RIVERFRONT REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT.)


CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Newark Riverfront Project; 18, 19 and 20.

MR. PAGANELLI:  Mr. Chairman, the Administration will withdraw 18 and 19; just ask the Board to consider 20 tonight.

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  Okay.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  We’ll be seeing those again?

MR. PAGANELLI:  Yes, sir.

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  I had a question on 18.

MR. PAGANELLI:  Okay.

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  Where does the money come from that we pay this with?
MR. PAGANELLI:  We -- as Gerry indicated, we have certain access funds at the Improvement Authority we’ve been utilizing to get the project moving along and the County’s repaying us back.

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  All right.

That was what he spoke -- okay.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  But this is really a County project?

MR. PAGANELLI:  Yes.

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  Yeah.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  I mean this is just a temporary advance of those funds.

MR. PAGANELLI:  Right.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Okay.

Can we have a motion on 20?

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  I’ll move it.
CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Can I have second please?

COMMISSIONER TORO:  Second.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Roll call, please.

THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Cohen?

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  Yes.

THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Spiesbach?

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Aye.

THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Toro?

COMMISSIONER TORO:  Yes.

THE SECRETARY:  Chairman Rother?

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Yes.

(Whereupon, the Board discussed and took action on the following item:

CORRECTIONAL FACILITY

  21.
RESOLUTION NO. 11-083 - RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PAYMENT TO SCHWARTZ SIMON EDELSTEIN & CELSO, LLP FOR LEGAL SERVICES IN CONNECTION WITH CELANESE V. ECIA IN THE AMOUNT OF $540.00 FOR SERVICES RENDERED THROUGH 3-31-11.)


CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Resolution number 21, Correctional Facility.


Elle, you -- you’re here to ask your --


COMMISSIONER COHEN:  No, I’m not even going to ask.


CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  You’re not going to ask your standard question?


COMMISSIONER COHEN:  No, no, no.  

I just said to Jim this never goes away.


CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Yeah, it’s the --

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  I had a wonderful --

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  -- gift that keeps on giving.


COMMISSIONER COHEN:  I had a wonderful superintendent of schools by the name of Jules Bernstein when I was on the school board.  And he said some things are like the poor, they’re always with us.


CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Okay.


All right.  Well this is such a de minimis amount that somebody can move that one.


COMMISSIONER COHEN:  That’s easy to move.

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  I would item 21.


CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Okay.


And could we have a second, please?


COMMISSIONER COHEN:  I’ll second.


CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Roll call, please.

THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Cohen?

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  Yes.

THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Spiesbach?

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Aye.

THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Toro?

COMMISSIONER TORO:  Yes.

THE SECRETARY:  Chairman Rother?

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Yes.


(Whereupon, the Board discussed and took action on the following items:

FINANCE/PGLP

  22.
RESOLUTION NO. 11-084 - RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN EXTENSION OF TWO YEARS TO THE LETTER OF CREDIT PROVIDED BY WELLS FARGO BANK, NA (SUCCESSOR TO WACHOVIA BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION) IN CONNECTION WITH THE AUTHORITY’S 1986 POOLED GOVERNMENTAL LOAN PROGRAM; and

  23.
RESOLUTION NO. 11-085 - RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PAYMENT OF CHARGES AND EXPENSES OF THE AUTHORITY’S $150,000,000 POOLED GOVERNMENT LOAN PROGRAM (SERIES 1986)

PAYMENTS DUE OTHERS FOR PGLP SERVICES
PHILIP A. LANZET, FINANCIAL CONSULTANT, APRIL 2011 - $2,500.00; and

WELLS FARGO BANK, NA, REMARKETING AGENT, 1‑31-11 TO 3-31-11 - $12,275.00.)

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Finance, Resolutions 22 and 23.

These are relatively easy.

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  I would move items 22 and 23.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Okay.

Can we have a second please?

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  Second.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Roll call.

THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Cohen?

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  Yes.

THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Spiesbach?

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Aye.

THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Toro?

COMMISSIONER TORO:  Yes.

THE SECRETARY:  Chairman Rother?

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Yes.

(Whereupon, the Board discussed and took action on the following items:

SPORTSPLEX GARAGE

  24.
RESOLUTION NO. 11-086 - RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PAYMENT TO AROCHO SERVICES, LLC IN THE AMOUNT OF $3,385.00 FOR SNOW REMOVAL IN FEBRUARY 2011;

  25.
RESOLUTION NO. 11-087 - RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PAYMENT TO ABLE ROLLING STEEL DOOR, IN THE AMOUNT OF $465.00 FOR REPAIRS TO THE COILING GRILLE; and
  26.
RESOLUTION NO. 11-088 - RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A PROPOSAL FROM ESSEX DOOR, GLASS & ALUMINUM IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,190.00 TO SUPPLY AND INSTALL TWO CLEAR LAMINATED GLASS PANELS TO REPLACE BROKEN ONES ALONG THE STAIRWELL AT THE GARAGE.)


CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Okay and finally to the Sportsplex Garage, 24, 25 and 26.

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  What’s happening there, Jim?

MR. PAGANELLI:  At the garage it is business as usual.

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  No, just the Sportsplex.

MR. PAGANELLI:  Yeah, I mean Sportsplex, as the Board may know, there’s been now a third or fourth owner in the last three or four years.  Tom Cetnar is the principal.  He was the former general manager of the Bears last couple years.

They have changed leagues.  They’re out of that Atlantic League and now in the Can-Am League, which is -- they’re hoping to develop this rivalry with the Jackals that play out of Montclair State. 

The season doesn’t start for a little while longer.  It’s a shorter season; shorter -- lower salaries.  So they’re hoping that leads to success.

If not, I’ll be back then at baseball; to talk about it again.

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  I’ll move 24 through 26.

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Second.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Roll call, please.

THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Cohen?

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  Yes.

THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Spiesbach?

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Aye.

THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Toro?

COMMISSIONER TORO:  Yes.

THE SECRETARY:  Chairman Rother?

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Yes.

(Whereupon, the Board discussed and took action on the following item: 

LATE STARTER 

ADMINISTRATION

    1.  RESOLUTION NO. 11-089 – RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT WITH GALLEROS KOH, LLP FOR FINANCIAL AND ACCOUNTING SERVICES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2011.) 


CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Anything in the Additional Information that you want to highlight in any way?

We’re going to sign --


MR. PAGANELLI:  Late Starter.


THE SECRETARY:  Late Starter.


CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Oh, we got a Late Starter.  That’s right.  That’s right.  I brought a copy.


COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Yeah, I wondered 

--


CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  I brought a copy.  Yeah.  Yeah.  Well, give us some background on that --

MR. PAGANELLI:  Yup.


COMMISSIONER COHEN:  Where’s the Late Starter?


CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  -- if you would.


MR. PAGANELLI:  Late Starter’s --


You can have that.


COMMISSIONER COHEN:  Oh, thank you.


MR. PAGANELLI:  Do you know when we did the RFP?


MS. SAPINSKI:  No.


MR. PAGANELLI:  Okay.


THE SECRETARY:  I believe October.


MR. PAGANELLI:  Yeah.

Some -- in the fall of last year when we did the audit we also went out for the RFP for accounting services.

As the Board may know, since we -- I guess we -- I guess the term of art would be that we privatized.  We privatized our accounting services probably back in 2004 and it’s worked fairly well.

We’ve had a company call Watson and Rice.  It was started with us with Nora Galleros.  And she had people here and it worked pretty well over the last couple of years.

Towards the end of last year it appeared that more -- it appeared that the key staff personnel that was working on the Improvement Authority project was going to move on.

Watson and Rice stayed on.  They finished the project and you just saw -- you just got --

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Um-hum.

MR. PAGANELLI:  -- report of the audit, so there’s no problem with the books.

Two responses we got in the fall were from Watson and Rice and from Galleros Koh.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Um-hum.

MR. PAGANELLI:  And Galleros Koh -- the reason why I mentioned that name earlier is Nora Galleros.  She was the person who had this project for the first three or four years out when we first started to privatize back in ’03.  So she was probably here ’03 to ’07, from my viewpoint the difficult years, because it was the transition over --

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Um-hum.  Yup.

MR. PAGANELLI:  -- in the systems.

The people that were the key people in Watson and Rice have moved over to Galleros Koh.

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  Right.

MR. PAGANELLI:  We had another meeting with them --

So we did -- we did interviews with both Watson and Rice and Galleros Koh.  During the pendency of those interviews or during ongoing interviews with them, we’re noticing teams are morphing.  
And we had very frank conversation with Watson and Rice to the point where they understood that they could no longer deliver really the product that we needed.
CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Um-hum.

MR. PAGANELLI:  We met with -- Lucy and I met with Nora Galleros yesterday and are confident that they will get the job done.  We know the plan that they have to get the job done and we’re confident in the people that they have.

Now, with that being said, we have asked that they provide us more personnel here, which they’ve agreed to do; more hours, which they’ve agreed to do.  
And we’re going to have more of a cross-training with them so that if employee A decides hey I’m going to move on, employee B is ready to roll; as well as Nora always being there.

Now, one of the drawbacks I said to them when we kind of went back to their package was you don’t have a great deal on your resume.  You don’t have a great deal of public experience.  Perth Amboy Board of Education, a lot of charter schools and things like that.  But individually the team does.

Individually the team is very familiar with our accounting system and our books and our procedures --       

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Um-hum. 

MR. PAGANELLI:  -- and that’s why we’re confident that our recommendation will be a good one and that they’ll be a good firm for us to do our accounting work.

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  On a net basis, are we going to save a little bit of money by changing to them versus Watson and Rice?

Is it about a wash?

MR. PAGANELLI:  It’s about a wash.

I mean I could say to you -- I don’t want to play -- you know, I’m not going to play technical with you, maybe they’ve offered a hundred twenty; maybe Watson and Rice was 122.

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Um-hum.

MR. PAGANELLI:  We have upped the hours though.

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Right.

MR. PAGANELLI:  So, you’re getting -- we’re getting --

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  So, you’re actually getting more value.

MR. PAGANELLI:  -- you’re getting more value to it and you’re getting more people here, ‑‑

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Um-hum.

MR. PAGANELLI:  -- which I think is important when -- in terms of cross-training.

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  But it’s not a new cost.  It was an embedded cost we always had.  It was with Watson and Rice --

MR. PAGANELLI:  Correct.

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  -- and this is really just transitioning it --

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  What --

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  -- to a different accounting firm.

MR. PAGANELLI:  Correct.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  What’s the FTE equivalent in terms of the staffing that you would have?

MS. SAPINSKI:  Here, here.

MR. PAGANELLI:  It’s attached, Luce?

THE SECRETARY:  In the proposal.
MR. PAGANELLI:  Where’s the last one that was marked up from yesterday?

THE SECRETARY:  We put it away.
COMMISSIONER COHEN:  Here; do you need this, Jim?

THE SECRETARY:  I don’t have --

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  I’m just trying to get a sense of what a hundred and twenty thousand dollars means.

MR. PAGANELLI:  Oh, yeah, and I -- we’ll give you some of -- we’ll give you some raw numbers.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Because one of the -- you know, depending upon how many FTEs you have here, that seems pretty cheap actually.

MR. PAGANELLI:  The -- it’s an interesting history to it.  Early on, when we first decided to transfer it over, I think we drove a very hard bargain.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Um-hum.

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  What’s an FTE?

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Full time equivalent.

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  Thank you.

MR. PAGANELLI:  Where’s my notes from yesterday though, Luce?

(Whereupon, there was a pause in the proceedings.)

MR. PAGANELLI:  So, what you’re looking at is really -- really they have four people that are going to be assigned to us.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Um-hum.

MR. PAGANELLI:  You have a partner who in here they’re talking about approximately 32 hours.  When we talked to them yesterday they’ll be out here once -- one day a month --

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Um-hum.

MR. PAGANELLI:  -- to oversee everything.

They have a senior accountant that will be out here for 2,000 hours.  You have a staff assistant that will be out here for 2,000 hours.  And you’ll have a person back there backing them up.

So, when we looked at it we were getting over 4,000 hours worth of work.
CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Um-hum.

MR. PAGANELLI:  So, when you say is it the same amount, I’d have to argue -- if I was going to argue it, no, because I didn’t get those -- that many hours from Watson and Rice.


And really where we were with Watson and Rice probably over the last -- maybe over the last two years was one person here with the laboring oar on almost everything.  And then as year-end came, they kind of brought people on to try to -- to just shore it up and finish off your books.

I don’t think you’ll see that now.  I think you’ll see -- I think if you came here in June and said, okay, let’s just talk about where we are today with our books, you’ll have May -- you’ll have April done, half of May done.  Which I don’t necessarily know if that’s where we were to date.


And that also then, as a corollary, puts pressure on our auditor because when December 31 comes I tell Luce set up the meeting, have them up here and we do our little yelling thing for them, which is what we do.  But we also let them know we’re not accepting it late.


And so that -- you had a little bit of a tension there this year.  

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Um-hum.  The person backing them up in the office, how many hours is that?  

MR. PAGANELLI:  It’s just a part-time person.  I’m not even going to count that person ‑‑

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Oh.

MR. PAGANELLI:  -- as a real person.

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Okay.  All right.

MR. PAGANELLI:  What we’ll have here is fulltime people.  
COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Um-hum.

MR. PAGANELLI:  You’ll have coverage for five days a week; one an overlap day.  So, you’ll have Monday, Tuesday, you’ll have an overlap day, Thursday, Friday.  And we’ll have the senior partner out here once a month.

And we think that’s going to be satisfactory to get us --

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Is this a guarantied max not to exceed?

I mean if the senior partner needs to be here, then we’ll have to talk about either modifying the contract or they just have to suck it up?

MR. PAGANELLI:  They’re going to suck it up.

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Okay.

MR. PAGANELLI:  There will be no additional dollars.
CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Still on an hourly rate that’s pretty good.

MR. PAGANELLI:  Yeah, it’s very good.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Yeah, that’s not bad at all.

How many other clients do they have?

Do you know, generally, what their volume of work is?

MR. PAGANELLI:  They have a good client list.  The reason why I don’t really point it out, from my -- from my end, again, I think the people that are assigned to this are good, know our systems and know our business --

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Um-hum.

MR. PAGANELLI:  -- in terms of our deals.

Most of their other work is charter school work other than Perth Amboy Board of Education.  It’s a lot of charter school work.

I don’t know if that’s a nitch out there or what.  But I don’t have their -- 

It’s not in there.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Well, it’s amazing how many public entities are doing this now.  It’s -– their thing.

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  And in addition to the lady that was here who would be the person -- the fulltime people here, are they new to us or 
--

MR. PAGANELLI:  No.

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  -- they were here previously when they were part of the Watson and Rice routine?

MR. PAGANELLI:  And that was one of the people that Mr. Stankiewicz thanked.  Her name is Bima Robles.  She is a former Watson and Rice person.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Okay?

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  I have no concerns.

MR. PAGANELLI:  By the time you fold in benefits and everything else, --

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Oh, my God.  Yeah, it’s real cheap.  It’s real cheap.  Sure.

Okay, this is Resolution number 11?  Is that what we --

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  I would --

MR. PAGANELLI:  It’s Added Starter Resolution -- on the Late Starter agenda or Added Starter agenda it would be Resolution 1.

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  I would move item number 1, --

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Okay.

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  -- on our Late Starter again.
CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Very good.

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  Second it.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Roll call, please.

THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Cohen?

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  Yes.

THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Spiesbach?

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Aye.

THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Toro?

COMMISSIONER TORO:  Yes.

THE SECRETARY:  Chairman Rother?

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Yes.

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Jim, before we move on, do you want to reconsider 18 and 19?

MR. PAGANELLI:  No.

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Considering that we have a quorum here?

MR. PAGANELLI:  No.

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Okay.

Because I could always qualify my --

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Oh, is that the reason?

Oh, I’m sorry.

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Well, --

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  I didn’t know.

MR. PAGANELLI:  No, I don’t want to do that.  
COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Okay. 

MR. PAGANELLI:  We’ve been consistent.  There’s no reason to cross the line.

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  All right.

MR. PAGANELLI:  And if it’s got to take another month, it’s going to take another month.

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Okay.

MR. PAGANELLI:  No problem.

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  It’s not because I’m not here.  I’m always here.

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  How do you want us to sign this?

Do you want us to – whosever here to sign it now?  Or do you want it individually?

MR. PAGANELLI:  No.  Whoever’s here, everybody could sign one.

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  One page, okay.

MR. PAGANELLI:  That’s the affidavit of the audit.  And then the other ones we’ll collect as we go through.


(Whereupon, the Board discussed the following items:
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
A.  REPORT OF PGLP ADMINISTRATOR

B.  AIRPORT MONTHLY OPERATIONAL REPORT
C.  JUDGE KLEIN ORDER DATED 4-14-11 GRANTING ECIA THE SUMMARY JUDGMENT IN CONNECTION WITH CMMI LITIGATION

D.  LETTER/PARKING SPACE AGREEMENT WITH GENOVA, BURNS & GIANTOMASI AT THE SPORTSPLEX PARKING GARAGE 
E.  PICTURE OF A BANNER FOR A “RIVERFRONT PARK”.)


MR. PAGANELLI:  I don’t think I have any comments on the Additional Information.

Mr. Chairman was asking me that before the Added Starter.


CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Yup.

MR. PAGANELLI:  We did have the State out here -- again, SCI.  I think they’re done now.  They were looking, this last time, at a couple of the bond deals.  How you come up with the fees, things like that.

They focused a little bit more on the Fern deal, which was a deal we did at the end of last year because they thought that the fees -- there was more fees to it.

And I said, look, on the Fern deal you have -- you really had a private entity.

So when you look at it -- he had a HUD counsel and things like that.  I said those things you could probably see -- since it’s a private entity; there’s no taxpayer dollars, he was financing all of his costs.

I don’t know if the Board remembers a few years ago we had an issue with our parking manager and his expenses.

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  Yes.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Um-hum.

MR. PAGANELLI:  He was kind of accumulating them to year-end.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Yes, hung on until the end.  I remember that.  Yes.

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  And then gave us all of them at once.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Yeah.

MR. PAGANELLI:  So that became kind of a -- not a sticky issue but it became quite talked about.

You know, how do you have $13,000.00 in expenses?  What are you doing with them?

Now we have whittled that way back down -- way down, from where it was but --

So that was part of our conversation.

You know, how we go about purchasing things was our -- part of our conversation.

I think they recognize we have a small shop.  In the best of all worlds you would have one person doing each tick on a clock; it doesn’t work here that way.

But there are some things that we’re going to sit down with the airport manager and the parking manager to talk about.

For instance, Mike at Parking ordered a safe.  The safe gets delivered to -- there’s no sense in sending the safe to Fairfield.

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Right.

MR. PAGANELLI:  So the safe gets sent to Newark where we have our facilities.

You know a typical question of me was, are you sure you got it?
CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Um hum.

MR. PAGANELLI:  So, I would say, yeah because Mike signed off that’s been approved.  But did I actually go to the Parking Garage and visualize this safe and ‑‑

No.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  No, that’s ludicrous.  Yeah. 

MR. PAGANELLI:  But that’s where -- you know, that’s where some of the questions were getting.  And obviously when you’re sitting there and someone’s asked you a question, you would always like to answer yes, of course, I saw it, I went down there, I wrote down the serial number.

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  It’s a lovely safe. 

MR. PAGANELLI:  So you’re sitting there and I think that -- I think the predominant was me, Maria, Luce handled the most of the interview and I think we were as upfront as we could be but we may change a few things.  Just in -- so that we’re a little bit more comfortable when we do sit down with people that, hey, we got an order signature, we got a received signature, we got this signature -- so there’s no -- you know, there’s no questions.
You remember any other big topics that came out?

MS. SAPINSKI:  No, Michael was the big one.

MR. PAGANELLI:  Yeah.  I mean Mike was the biggest one.  So, we’ll deal with it.  I mean it was a couple years back but, you know, it is what it is.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  They want an inventory of everything you’ve purchased?

MR. PAGANELLI:  You know one of the things they asked, like do we have an inventory of our computers?

MS. SAPINSKI:  Yes.

MR. PAGANELLI:  And really we don’t.  There’s six of us.  We know who we are.  We know where the computers are.  But, you know, maybe it’s not a bad idea for us to write down all the serial numbers and put it in the safe incase --

So, little things like that that --

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  They were stretching.

MR. PAGANELLI:  You know, I mean obviously the records here at least over the last couple years are kept pretty well, so we had backup for every -- 
You know they went through six years of -- five years of vendor lists, every vendor payment.

Do you have the backup?  Do you have this?  Can we talk about it?
You know, I think one year we had the air conditioning units go out upstairs.

MS. SAPINSKI:  Party City.  Yes.    
MR. PAGANELLI:  And Party City was the --

MS. SAPINSKI:  Name of the vendor.

MR. PAGANELLI:  -- was the name of the vendor.  So right away I think they were like --

MS. SAPINSKI:  It was $11,000.00.

MS. GILL:  You didn’t invite us to that but --

MS. SAPINSKI:  Yeah.

MS. GILL:  -- you didn’t invite us to that.

MS. SAPINSKI:  It was like $11,000.00.  Uh‑oh.  
MR. PAGANELLI:  Yeah, it was a big bill.  We brought in temporary air conditioning units.  So, he’s like Party City, we’d like to talk about this --

And then I’m -- I’m like Party City?  No way, no way.  And then Lucy’s like, no, no, it was the air conditioner.  I was like, oh yes, okay, Party City.

So, I’m expecting we may get a couple of comments back.  They don’t tell you why they’re here, although they’re doing a bunch of authorities.

I think, frankly, -- I don’t think they saw anything here that was startling to them.  They recognize small staff; they recognize everybody’s kind of running around a little bit, so.

But those are the things that were brought up at least verbally.  If we get a written, I’ll make sure everybody has it.  And we may change a few things up just to try to keep ourselves as tight as possible so we don’t have any comments.

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Are we putting our stuff on the website like we’re supposed to --

MR. PAGANELLI:  Yeah, we have a --

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Because I did find that.  I sent that report to you.

MR. PAGANELLI:  I got it.  

We have a meeting.  Herb Perez, who’s the operations manager for the Airport, really set up our internet, our webpage, off the Airport.

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Um-hum.

MR. PAGANELLI:  That’s where the request was.  So we’re going to add to that.  We’re going to add Resolutions.  We’ll add our --

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Good.

MR. PAGANELLI:  -- our audit.  Meetings.  You know, things like that.  Just to try to keep it as open as we can.

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Wonderful.

MR. PAGANELLI:  All right?

COMMISSIONER TORO:  When was the last time that the State came and reviewed?

MR. PAGANELLI:  Never.

COMMISSIONER TORO:  Okay.

MR. PAGANELLI:  You know I shouldn’t say never.
The State -- the State has been here -- there’s a history, which I’m sure you’ll catch up on, on a building called New United down in Newark.  The State’s been here looking at those documents.
But I think -- what I gather from them is that the State is looking at a number of different -- the Christie Administration is looking at a number of different shadow governments and so they’re hitting authorities.  And they’re going around; I know they’re going to Passaic because Passaic called me a little rattled about it.  And, you know, it is what it is.  There’s nothing -- we have nothing to hide, so.

Okay?

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  It’s our salaries they’re concerned about.

MR. PAGANELLI:  He was impressed with our ‑‑ yeah, no salaries, no family members, no -- you know, it’s -- it’s well run.  And it’s well run because of the leadership from the Board, so.

But that’s all I got.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Okay.

ADJOURNMENT
CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Can we have a --

COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Motion to adjourn.
CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  -- motion to adjourn?

Good.

Second?

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  Okay.

CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Roll call.

THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Cohen?

COMMISSIONER COHEN:  Yes.

THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Spiesbach?
COMMISSIONER SPIESBACH:  Aye.
THE SECRETARY:  Commissioner Toro?

COMMISSIONER TORO:  Yes.

THE SECRETARY:  Chairman Rother?
CHAIRMAN ROTHER:  Yes.

(Whereupon, the proceedings were concluded at 5:35 p.m., Resolution No. 11-10.)
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